GRANTS COMMITTEE OF THE BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES BOARD Monday, 6 December 2021

Minutes of the meeting of the Grants Committee of the Bridge House Estates Board held at Committee Room - 2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall and via Microsoft Teams on Monday, 6 December 2021 at 10.30 am

Present

Members:

Paul Martinelli (Chair)
Dhruv Patel (Deputy Chair)
Alderman & Sheriff Alison Gowman
Judith Pleasance
Jannat Hossain (Co-opted Member)
William Hoyle (Co-opted Member)

Officers:

David Farnsworth - Managing Director of BHE

Amelia Ehren - Town Clerk's Department

Joseph Anstee - Town Clerk's Department

Anne Pietsch - Comptroller & City Solicitor's Dept.

Wai Chan
- City Bridge Trust
Caspar Cech-Lucas
- City Bridge Trust
Clara Espinosa
- City Bridge Trust

Jenny Field - City Bridge Trust
Sam Grimmett-Batt - City Bridge Trust
Kelvin Ha - City Bridge Trust
Emma Horrigan - City Bridge Trust
Natalie Jordan - City Bridge Trust
Jack Joslin - City Bridge Trust

City Bridge Trust Catherine Mahoney Kate Moralee City Bridge Trust City Bridge Trust Geraldine Page Lydia Parr City Bridge Trust City Bridge Trust Veronica Pearce City Bridge Trust Fiona Rawes Matthew Robinson City Bridge Trust City Bridge Trust Anneka Singh City Bridge Trust Nina Sofaly

Theo Tsipiras - City Bridge Trust
Tim Wilson - City Bridge Trust
- City Bridge Trust
- City Bridge Trust
- Chamberlain's Department

Nathan Omane - Chamberlain's Department

The Chair welcomed all those in attendance and Members of the public observing the meeting via YouTube.

1. APOLOGIES

There were no apologies.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were no declarations.

3. MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 30 September 2021 be agreed as a correct record.

Matters Arising

The Committee noted that following a request for expressions of interest, William Hoyle had agreed to serve as the Committee's LocalMotion Funder Collaboration representative and had been appointed accordingly. William Hoyle then advised that he had attended a full-day stakeholder meeting as the Committee's representative on 25 November.

4. SUMMARY OF BRIDGING DIVIDES

The Committee noted a summary of the Bridging Divides programme. The Managing Director of BHE advised that the summary document would be updated to reflect new workstreams once these had been established.

5. MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT

The Committee considered a report of the Managing Director of BHE providing an update on key areas of activity and outlining upcoming activities. The Managing Director of BHE introduced the report and the Committee discussed the updates provided.

London Councils Grants Committee

The Managing Director of BHE advised that the Chair of the BHE Grants Committee had agreed to serve as the City of London Corporation's representative on the London Councils Grants Committee. The Managing Director of BHE added that this was an important partnership for the organisation and for CBT, and thanked the Deputy Chair for his contributions to the Committee during his time as representative.

London Funders

The Managing Director of BHE advised that work was ongoing with collaborative partners with a view to building on the success of the London Community Response/Fund (LCR/F), with a key element being the retention and development of the single application form. Officers were working in conjunction with other funders to develop a proposal to improve collaboration

going forward and a recommendation for significant support would be submitted to the Grants Committee before the end of the financial year.

Learning Visits

The Managing Director of BHE thanked Members for their interest in attending a learning visit when possible, and advised that the Impact & Learning team would be in touch to arrange suitable dates with Members that had expressed interest. The Managing Director of BHE added that the visits would be beneficial for informing the Committee's future work.

Beacon Collaborative

In response to a question from a Member, the Chair advised that he and the Deputy Chair had attended the annual strategic conference in October, which had been a positive and interesting event. The Managing Director of BHE advised that CBT was currently represented on the organisational side, but closer ties would be considered if the opportunity arose.

BHE Website

In response to a question from the Chair, the Managing Director of BHE advised that it was hoped to launch the new website by May 2022, with user group testing to take place beforehand.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

6. GRANT FUNDING ACTIVITY: PERIOD ENDED 16TH SEPTEMBER 2021

The Committee considered a report of the Managing Director of BHE providing the Committee with details of funds approved under delegated authority since the last meeting of the Grants Committee in September 2021 through to 25th November 2021; any grant variations that have been approved under delegated authority and seeking approval for 2 grant applications above the delegated authority threshold and 7 grant application rejections.

The Chair introduced the item and drew Members' attention to the heat maps of London provided following the request at the last meeting. The Managing Director of BHE thanked Members for this feedback and advised that suggestions for any further tools that would be useful were welcome. The Managing Director of BHE added that grants information was publicly available through 360Giving, but that infographics and visual aids were part of the plans for the new website as a way to increase engagement.

In response to a question from a Member, the Managing Director of BHE then outlined CBT's work with regards to 'cold spot' funding areas, noting that sometimes CBT cold spots were so as the sector was strong in that area. However, CBT tried to reach out across all areas of London, and through collaboration with and support of other funders may be involved with initiatives in cold spots indirectly.

The Committee then considered the grant applications appended to the report. The Managing Director of BHE introduced and presented the grant application in respect of Hammersmith and Fulham Association for Mental Health, noting the revised request and recommendation. In response to questions, the Managing Director of BHE advised that follow-on funding would be an option at the conclusion of the grant, and that the grant would complement rather than replace existing statutory funding. The Committee then agreed the application.

The Managing Director of BHE then introduced and presented the grant application in respect of Beacon Fellowship Charitable Trust (The Beacon Collaborative) and advised the Committee of a proposed amendment to the recommendations, that the condition in respect of the approval of negotiation outcomes be signed off by officers, rather than by the Chair and Deputy Chair. This amendment was agreed. In response to questions, the Managing Director of BHE gave the Committee further detail regarding the initiative's strategy going forward and adaptation to the Covid-19 pandemic. The Committee then agreed the application.

The Committee then considered the applications recommended for rejection and agreed the recommendations.

The Committee then noted the variations to existing grants set out in the report. In response to a question from the Chair in respect of the grant to Neighbourly Care, the Managing Director of BHE explained that the monitoring process had involved reviewing progress against the original outcomes, and assured the Committee that officers met regularly to discuss learning where there had been issues relating to grants.

The Committee then noted the funds approved or declined under delegated authority. In response to a question from the Chair, the Managing Director of BHE advised that officers could look at ways to encourage the use of electric vehicles, given the prohibitive costs of the congestion charge and ULEZ, noting that CBT funded eco-audits in respect of buildings. The Committee noted that Livery Companies were also doing work in this area, and that it would link well with the wider City of London Corporation's Climate Action Strategy.

RESOLVED – That the Grants Committee of the BHE Board:

- a) Note the report;
- b) Approve a grant to Hammersmith and Fulham Association for Mental Health of £160,000 across three years (£53,250; £53,250; £53,500) for a full-time Advice and Information Worker and associated costs, to provide advice services from two central hub locations and in alternative community and health settings across Hammersmith and Fulham and Hounslow. Draw down of funds is conditional on the information and advice service achieving Advice Quality Standard accreditation;
- c) Approve a grant to Beacon Fellowship Charitable Trust (The Beacon Collaborative) of up to £350,000 over two years towards the work of the

Beacon Fellowship Charitable Trust subject to satisfactory confirmation of the following conditions:

- confirmed funding at a similar level from Arts Council England and/or other funders
- 2. demonstrating that the amounts requested from CBT constitute an appropriate proportion up to a maximum of 50% of the overall cost of each funded project relative to other secured funds; and
- 3. the satisfactory negotiation of key outcomes, milestones, delivery arrangements and payment schedules for each workstream (approval of the outcomes of such negotiation to be delegated to officers);
- d) Agree the rejection of 7 grant applications in respect of Ezer Leyoldos Limited, Get Set Girls, Hackney Community Law Centre, African Smile, Half Moon Young People's Theatre Ltd, Blue Ribbon Foundation and Sona Tech CIC.

7. ALLIANCE FUNDING - ROSA (18979) AND GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY (18980)

The Committee considered a report of the Managing Director of BHE requesting funding from CBT of £1.219m; comprised of £499,999 to Rosa towards administration costs and onward grant-making to BME women-led charities benefitting Londoners, and £720,000 towards the Greater London Authority (GLA) for administration and onward grant-making to grass-roots charities led by and for their communities benefiting Londoners. The report also recommended that the committee earmarks up to £15m of further funding towards other similar collaborations with established funders before the end of March 2023, piloting an "Alliance Fund".

The Managing Director of BHE introduced and presented the application, and in response to questions from Members gave the Committee some further context on the recommendation to allocate, in principle, further funding for other such 'Alliance Fund' initiatives. The Committee noted that there would not be a specific commitment to spend at this time, with the allocation to be made up of smaller spending decisions at a later point.

The Deputy Chair commented that the collaboration and partnership elements of the initiative should be promoted further, and the Managing Director of BHE confirmed that both funders were keen to work collaboratively. A Member added that it would be important to consider what was meant by collaboration in this context, in comparison to projects such as LocalMotion, and the desired outcomes as CBT moved into this space.

RESOLVED – That the Grants Committee of the BHE Board agree:

a) A grant of £499,999 be made to ROSA, registered charity no: 1124856, for the RISE fund, providing grants to strengthen Black and minoritised-led organisations in the women and girls sector. The funding can only be used to support organisations benefitting Londoners and includes £90,000 towards administration costs. A payment schedule will be drawn

up, allowing the funds to be paid to Rosa in instalments, allowing payments to be received prior to onward grants being committed/paid;

- b) In principle, subject to the approval of the Bridge House Estates Board, a separate grant of £720,000 shall be made to the Greater London Authority (GLA, devolved regional governance body of the London region) for the Civil Society Roots 3 programme, with up to £120,000 to be spent on administration costs including the salary of a coordinator (the job description of the coordinator to be provided as a condition of the grant). A payment schedule will be drawn up, allowing the funds to be paid to the GLA in instalments, allowing payments to be received prior to onward grants being committed/paid; and
- c) Agree to allocate up to £15m, in principle, and subject to the usual assessment (including financial assessment) and delegated authority protocols, of further funding towards other such "Alliance Fund" initiatives which meet the criteria set out in this report.

8. HACKNEY CVS (19011) BAOBAB FOUNDATION (19019)

The Committee considered a report of the Managing Director of BHE requesting funding for phase two (incubation phase) of the development of the Baobab Foundation (Baobab), the first funder dedicated explicitly to growing, supporting, and strengthening groups and organisations led by and serving Black people and communities affected by racism and racial disparities in the UK.

The Managing Director of BHE introduced and presented the application, also setting out the process for onward approval to the BHE Board, should the Committee endorse the recommendations. The Chair commented that this was a complex piece of work, but an exciting opportunity and drew Members' attention to the recommendations.

RESOLVED – That the Grants Committee of the BHE Board agree:

- 1. A grant of £200,000 be made to Hackney Council for Voluntary Service (HCVS), registered charity no:1069736 to be held for the benefit of the Baobab Foundation, towards phase two (incubation) running costs over two years (year one £120k, year two £80k) upon terms that provide that upon the satisfactory constitution and registration of the Baobab Foundation (further to recommendation 2 below) and subject to entering into a grant agreement with the Baobab Foundation (i) the balance of grant funding held by HCVS shall be transferred to the Baobab Foundation and (ii) the balance of funding yet to be paid over at the relevant time shall be paid directly to the Baobab Foundation;
- 2. In principle, subject to the approval of the Bridge House Estates Board, a further grant of £2,000,000 (payment schedule to be agreed at the point of funds being committed) shall be made to the Baobab Foundation towards onward grant-making for the benefit of Londoners provided that the following conditions are met:

- (i) The Baobab Foundation becomes a constituted organisation registered in a manner which meets City Bridge Trust's usual eligibility criteria, and your officers are satisfied that appropriate governance and management practices are in place.
- (ii) Subject to the condition at (i) above being met, the Chamberlain (through the Charities Finance Team) is satisfied with the financial position of the organisation.
- 3. Subject to the approval of the Bridge House Estates Board to Recommendation 2, a letter of comfort be sent to the Baobab Foundation to confirm the intention to make the grant of £2m subject to the stated conditions being met and also subject to a grant agreement being entered into:
- 4. Should the Bridge House Estates Board approve Recommendation 2 above and the relevant conditions be met, that authority be delegated to the Managing Director of Bridge House Estates in consultation with the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Bridge House Estates Board and the Chamberlain, to award the grant of £2,000,000 to the legally constituted Baobab Foundation subject to any additional conditions which might be considered prudent at that time; and
- 5. That, should there be substantive alterations to the arrangements set out in this report and/or to matters affecting the decisions taken, this matter will be reported back to the Grants Committee and Bridge House Estates Board.

9. GRANTS COMMITTEE - OFFICER DELEGATIONS

The Committee considered a report of the Managing Director of BHE presenting options for consideration in respect of officer delegations for CBT. The Managing Director of BHE introduced the report, also reflecting on the Committee's discussion at the previous meeting, and drew Members' attention to the key points. The Managing Director of BHE also advised of a technical point in respect of the wording to be clear that the level of delegation would be determined by the amount of funding recommended by officers rather than the amount requested by the applicant. The Committee noted that a review point after six months or two committee cycles could be built in, in the spirit of CBT being a learning organisation.

The Chair then drew the Committee's attention to the options available, with Members supporting Option 3 which was felt to be representative off the Committee's discussion at the previous meeting.

RESOLVED – That the Grants Committee of the BHE Board:

 i) Agree to implement the officer delegations and financial thresholds presented at the September meeting on a permanent basis and to widen those delegations to include authority to take decisions to reject applications where appropriate, as set out below:

- a. Application Recommendations of up to £50,000 in total may be approved or rejected by the Managing Director of BHE or in their absence, the Associate Director of CBT or a CBT Funding Director;
- b. Application Recommendations of between £50,001 and £100,000 in total to be approved or rejected by the Managing Director of BHE or in their absence the Associate Director of CBT, in consultation with the Chamberlain (acting by the Charities Finance Team) for recommendations;
- c. Application Recommendations of between £100,001 and £250,000 in total to be approved or rejected by the Managing Director of BHE or in their absence the Associate Director of CBT in consultation with the Chamberlain (acting by the Charities Finance Team) for recommendations, with the decision of the Managing Director of BHE (or the Associate Director of CBT as the case may be) being taken in consultation with the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Grants Committee; and
- d. Applications or Recommendations (whichever is the higher) of between £250,001 and £500,000 in total to be approved or rejected by the Grants Committee.

Subject to one amendment in that for grants of a value between £100,001 and £250,000:

- (a) the full Committee shall be consulted in writing on the decision prior to the exercise of the Chief Officer's delegated authority:
- (b) Should any Member have a comment on the application to be considered, this should be forwarded directly to the Chair/Deputy Chair within 48 hours of the email being sent;
- (c) The Chair and Deputy Chair have the authority to reject or accept any comments as part of their decision-making process.
- ii) Agree to review the delegations after six months or two committee cycles.

10. CITY BRIDGE TRUST OPERATIONAL RISK REGISTER

The Committee considered a report of the Managing Director of BHE providing the operational risks for CBT, which forms part of the wider BHE risk register for review. The Managing Director of BHE introduced the report and drew Members' attention to the key points.

A Member queried why Brexit had been taken off the Risk Register, as the report acknowledged that it may have to be reinstated at a later point, and fuel and food supply issues were still prevalent and relevant to the work of the Committee. The Managing Director of BHE responded that he was sympathetic to this view and advised that this could be reviewed. In response to a question from a Member regarding crisis management, the Managing Director of BHE

gave the Committee further detail in respect of mitigations against funding decisions going wrong, both for the grantee and for CBT.

RESOLVED – That the Grants Committee:

- a) Review the five risks currently on the register for this Committee and confirm that appropriate control measures are in place; and
- b) Confirm that there are no other risks relating to the services overseen by the Grants Committee which should be added to the Operational Risk Register, or which should be escalated as 'principal risks' to the BHE Principal Risk Register.

11. CBT BUDGET 2022/23 AND BUDGET MONITORING FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2021

The Committee considered a report of the Managing Director of BHE and the Chamberlain presenting for approval the CBT budget for 2022/23 and providing an update on the year-to-date financial position of CBT. The Managing Director of BHE introduced the report and outlined the wider financial position of CBT for the Committee. In response to a question from a Member, the Chamberlain advised that where there was a discrepancy between figures this was due to the inclusion of staff costs. The Managing Director of BHE also advised the Committee on the strategy for managing the CBT budget going forward, which would be planned in conjunction with the Chamberlain and regular decisions by Members.

The Chair then thanked officers for the detailed budget and work undertaken in this area.

RESOLVED – That the Grants Committee of the BHE Board:

- Review and recommend CBT's proposed revenue budget for 2022/23 for inclusion in the charity's overall Budget to be presented to the BHE Board;
- ii) Agree that minor amendments for 2022/23 budgets arising during budget setting be delegated to the Head of Charity and Social Investment Finance; and
- iii) Note the aspects of the report providing information on the updated financial position for 2021/22.

12. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT There was no other business.

14. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED – That with the Court of Common Council for the City Corporation as Trustee of Bridge House Estates (Charity No. 1035628) having decided to treat these meetings as though Part VA and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 applied to them, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that their consideration will in each case disclose exempt information of the description in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A, being information relating to the financial and business affairs of any person (including the City Corporation as Trustee of the charity) which it would not be in the charity's best interests to disclose.

15. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2021 be agreed as a correct record.

16. PIPELINE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

The Committee received a report of the Managing Director of BHE.

17. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

18. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was no other business.

The meeting ended at 12.13 pm		
Chair		

Contact Officer: Joseph Anstee joseph.anstee@cityoflondon.gov.uk